
 
 

SCRUTINY : SOCIAL SERVICES 
 

3.00 pm TUESDAY, 6TH OCTOBER, 2020 
REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 

 
A Pre-Meeting will take place prior to this Meeting and a separate invitation will 

be sent from Scrutiny Support Officers to Committee Members only  

 
 

Please note that today’s Meeting will be recorded.  
  

This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined 

above. 

 

 
This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 

member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 
725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 

 
Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 

found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers. 
 

 
AGENDA 

 

1. Apologies for absence   

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations)  

 

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

3. Annual Report - Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments 2018/2019  

 

 To consider the attached report 
 

3 - 24 

4. Transformation of Day Services Provision   

 To consider the attached report 
 

25 - 30 

5. Forward Work Programme 2020/21   

 To consider the attached report 
 

31 - 42 

6. Scrutiny Referrals, Feedback and Follow up 
Actions  

 

7. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

8. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

  
 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors:  W R Smith (Chair) 
                     S Jago (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors: G Richards, T Rogers, D Sammon and 

I Thomas 
 
Co-optees: I Cathrew 

  
together with appropriate officers 
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 
 

Annual Report - Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments 2018/2019 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 Local Authorities are required by the Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) 
Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to 
produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments policy and procedures. 

 

1.2 This report highlights the key points contained in the Annual Social Services 
Complaints, Representations and Compliments report, a copy of which is attached 
as Appendix 1. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 

2.1 Scrutiny committee consider the report and raise questions and challenges that will 
improve practice and outcomes for our customers. 

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 Social Services provide support to the most vulnerable people in our community, 
often in very difficult situations, and routinely deliver effective services that make a 
real difference in people’s lives.  Sometimes, however for a variety of reasons, 
people will make a complaint about the service they have received. 

 
3.2 Local Authorities are required by the Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) 

Regulations 2014 and the Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to 
produce an Annual Report about the operation of their Social Services Complaints, 
Representations and Compliments policy and procedures. 

Date Written 21st September 2020 

Report Author Gaynor Lewis 

Service Area Social Services 

Committee Date 6th October 2020 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



3.3 The Annual Social Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments Report 
for 2018/2019 sets out the Departments performance in relation to how it has dealt 
with the complaints, representations and compliments it has received. 

 
3.4 The report details the number of complaints that were received and dealt with at all 

the available stages of the policy across both children’s and adults’ services. 
 
3.5 The Social Services Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the 

Representations Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 guidelines for complaints, 
representations and compliments by Local Authority Social Services were introduced 
in August 2014.  The regulations introduced a new two stage process and brought 
the Social Services procedures in line with the Corporate “Model Concerns and 
Complaints Policy and Guidance”. 

 
3.6 The regulations aim to provide streamline complaints arrangements across the 

public sector and focus on an initial local resolution where the expectation is that the 
significant majority of complaints would be resolved. 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 The annual report for 2017/2018 showed that in total we received 78 complaints. 
 
4.2 The table below details the complaints that were received in 2017/2018 across 

Children’s and Adult services across the two stages of the complaints process. 
  

Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Total 

Adult Services 33 1 34 

Children’s Services  42 2 44 

Total 75 3 78 

 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 The annual report for 2018/2019 showed that in total we received 98 complaints. 
 
5.2 The table below details the complaints that were received in 2017/2018 across 

Children’s and Adult services across all stages of the complaints process. 

 
Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Total 

Adult Services 44 1 45 

Children’s Services  52 1 53 

Total 96 2 98 

Page 4



5.3 There was an increase of 20 in the total number of complaints received between 
2017/2018 and 2018/2019. 

 
5.4 For comparison purposes the number of complaints received over the last four years 

was as follows. 
 

Service Area 
 

2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 

Adult Services 
 

45 34 29 25 

Children’s Services 
 

53 44 39 39 

Total 
 

98 78 68 64 

 
 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 For a variety of reasons, people will make a complaint about the service they have 

received.  It is important that anyone who makes a complaint about our services has 
a right to be listened to properly with their concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  
In addition, it is important that Local Authorities learn from these complaints and 
where necessary use them to identify where services should be changed and 
improved. 

 
6.2 Every effort is made to resolve matters at a local level with the emphasis on 

achieving successful resolution of complaints.  At stage one the Local Authority 
usually offers to discuss (either face-to-face or by telephone) the matter with the 
complainant within ten working days to attempt to resolve matters.  This approach 
allows for quick and successful resolution of most complaints. 

 
6.3 Complaints received that are progressed to Stage 2 are normally more complex in 

nature and often contain several components of dissatisfaction that need to be 
independently investigated. 

 
6.4 Our emphasis at all stages is focused on achieving satisfactory resolution of matters 

rather than upholding or not upholding complaints.   
 
6.5 All complaints are unique in their own right and often contain several elements of 

dissatisfaction to be addressed.  This is particularly relevant at the formal stage, 
hence the reason why the majority of stage two complaints are part upheld – some 
components being recognised, while others not agreed.  

 
6.6 Communication issues including failure to respond within appropriate timescales to 

messages and failure to update customers on decision continued to be a theme 
through this reporting period. 

 
 
 
 

Page 5



7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 Social Services provide support to the most vulnerable people in our community, 

often in very difficult situations, and routinely deliver effective services that make a 
real difference in people’s lives.  Sometimes, however for a variety of reasons, 
people will make a complaint about the service they have received.  It is important 
that anyone who makes a complaint about our services has a right to be listened to 
properly with their concerns resolved quickly and effectively.  In addition, it is 
important that Local Authorities learn from these complaints and where necessary 
use them to identify where services should be changed and improved. 

 
7.2 Whilst we do our very best and work hard to resolve complaints within the statutory 

timescales it is however acknowledged that some complaints can be complex, 
sensitive and difficult to resolve and that this is not possible on all occasions.  It is 
important to note that an over emphasis on quick resolution within performance 
indicator timescales could detract from ensuring that full and proper consideration is 
given to complaints and that at times to achieve a successful resolution to the 
complaint it is necessary to take longer to investigate than the set timescales. 

 
7.3 Timescales will be continued to be monitored to improve and promote adherence to 

statutory legislation and increase the timeliness of responses at stage one. 
 
7.4 Social Services continue to adopt a positive attitude towards complaints, we continue 

to learn from complaints and view complaints as a valuable form of feedback, which 
assists in the development and improvement of services.  While not all complaints 
are upheld they do, however, provide useful information in respect of the way 
services are delivered.  They provide us with the opinions of our customers and also 
provide opportunities to learn lessons where a service has fallen short of expected 
standards. 

 
7.5 Like all other Councils in Wales Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council are facing 

the need to reduce the amount of money we spend.  However, despite the 
increasing challenges faced by public services, in general, the number of complaints 
received is relatively small in comparison to the nature of the services provided. 

 
7.6 Social Services will continue to provide for the needs of the community, achieving 

the Council’s vision and strategic aims for the future.  The needs of the population 
are changing and we will continue to learn and develop from complaints.  Services 
have continued to experience high levels of demand, reflecting the levels of 
disadvantage and the challenges faced by a significant number of families living in 
the County Borough.  The Social Care Complaints Procedure provides citizens with 
an essential, effective way of communicating their concerns so that levels of 
customer satisfaction can be increased and our services continue to improve.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 
8.1 This report contributes to all four of our 

well-being objectives (set out in the table 
below) by supporting the Council to address 
complaints and continuously improve how 
our services are delivered.  This is 
particularly the case to the Best Start and 
Living Well objectives.  This in turn support 
how the Council delivers against regional 
and national goals. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Well-being Theme Objective 

Best Start 

 

Children and young people get the best start to life and are equipped with the skills they 
need to be successful learners and confident individuals. 

Working Life 

 

People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the needs of businesses, with a 
developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr Tydfil an attractive destination. 

Environmental 

 Well-being 

Communities protect, enhance, and promote our environment and countryside. 

Living Well 

 

People are empowered to live independently within their communities, where they are safe 
and enjoy good physical and mental health. 

 
 
 

LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR                

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Social Services 
Complaints Policy 

 

10th September 2014 Unit 5 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

  
ANNUAL REPORT SOCIAL 
SERVICES COMPLAINTS, 
REPRESENTATIONS AND 

COMPLIMENTS 2018 / 2019 
 

Version 1.0 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 2020 

 

APPENDIX 1 

P
age 8



 

Contents 
Introduction & Background ..................................................................................................................................................................................................... 8 

What does the data tell us? ................................................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Complaint Outcomes ............................................................................................................................................................................................................. 16 

Compliments ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

Lessons Learnt ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 21 

 
 

P
age 9



Introduction & Background 
Councils are required by to produce an Annual Report regarding the operation of their Social Services Complaint procedures.  This report 

provides a summary of statistical information relating to complaints and representations dealt with during the period April 2018 to March 

2019.  

 

Social Services in Merthyr Tydfil adopts a positive attitude towards complaints and views them as a valuable form of feedback, which assists in 

the development and improvement of services. Complaints also provide an opportunity to learn lessons where a service has fallen short of an 

expected standard. 

 

Publicising the Procedure 

The representation and complaints procedure is widely publicised generally and specifically to people that use our services.  It provides them 
with an opportunity to: 

 Voice their concerns when they are dissatisfied in order that the issue can be rectified to their satisfaction, wherever possible; 

 Make compliments; 

 Suggest improvements; and 

 Challenge decisions. 
 

Aims 

The Aim of the Procedure 

The aim is for our representation and complaints procedure to secure a better service for all the people using social care services and it is 

underpinned by the following key principles: 

 Commitment to providing quality services; 

 Accessible and supportive to those with particular needs; 

 Prompt and responsive with resolution at the earliest possible opportunity Strong problem solving element; 

 Operated without prejudice or discrimination; and 

 Adheres to the principle of equal opportunity. 
 

 

 

P
age 10



The representation and complaints procedure also provides an opportunity for service users to address concerns in relation to independent 

sector providers where they remain dissatisfied following implementation of the agencies own internal complaints procedures. 

 

Our Team Aim 

A key aim of the MTCBC Compliments and Complaints Team is limit the number of stage 1 complaints that escalate 
to stage 2.  However, considering the sustainable development principle set out in the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act 2015, we aim to support the service to prevent complaints happening in the first place.   
 
 
 
 

The Process 

Receipt of all the complaints received are required to be acknowledged within the statutory timescale of two working days.  In some cases, 

issues raised fall outside the responsibility of Social Services and in these instances, the Complaints Officer liaises with the appropriate Service 

Area or Agency.  

 
The Social Services complaints process has two stages:  
 
Stage One: Local Resolution – The emphasis at this stage of the process is to resolve the complaint by means of discussion and problem 
solving.  The complainant will be offered a discussion about the issues they have raised and this can either be done by telephone or face to 
face in an attempt to resolve the issues.  This must be done within 10 working days of the receipt of the complaint. Following this discussion 
and any further investigation that is necessary, a written response will be provided within 5 working days. 
 
Stage Two: Formal Consideration – If the complainant remains dissatisfied after completion of stage one, they may request that the complaint 
proceeds to stage two of the process.  This involves a formal independent investigation of the complaint with a report being produced by the 
investigating officer appointed to the case.  The timescale for dealing with this stage is 25 working days.  
 
If the complainant remains dissatisfied with the outcome of the stage two investigation, they may progress their complaint to the Public 
Service Ombudsman for Wales. 
 
 

P
age 11



Categorisation 

All Social Services complaints received are recorded into the following categories: 
 

ANNUAL COUNCIL REPORTING FRAMEWORK (ACRF) MODEL 
FOR CATEGORISATION OF COMPLAINTS 

1. ACCESS 
 Lack of information; service delays; waiting lists; access to service; refusal of service. 
 
2. ASSESSMENT 
 Decision delays; service costs; assessed needs; charging policies; delays in assessment 

 The council failing to do something which the customer thinks it should have been done, even if it was not actually asked to 
do it: 

o Failure to implement actions agreed in meetings. 
o Failure to carry out an agreed / requested assessment. 

 
3. CARE MANAGEMENT AND REVIEW 
 Removal and reduction of service; child protection; change of staff. 

 The Council failing to do something which the Customer thinks it should have done, even if it was not actually asked to do it. 
o Failure to implement actions agreed in meetings. 
o Failure to carry out an agreed / requested assessment. 

 The Council doing something that the Customer did not want it to do. 
o The Council making a decision to do something that the Customer does want to happen in the future (e.g. planned 

placement changes, withdrawal of a payment facility). 
 
4. RANGE OF SERVICES 
 Lack of service; identified needs not being met. 
 
5 QUALITY OF SERVICE 

Communication issues; not following through what was promised; continuity of care; not following procedure and policy; time 
keeping; failure to respond; breach of confidentiality; service quality; timescales; financial; late calls; medication; staff issues; 
conduct and attitude; standards. 

 The council has not achieved the standard it says it will provide. 

P
age 12



ANNUAL COUNCIL REPORTING FRAMEWORK (ACRF) MODEL 
FOR CATEGORISATION OF COMPLAINTS 

 The Service has not been provided to the standard which the customer thinks is reasonable: 
o The Council is carrying out its duties in an unsatisfactory way. 
o Failure to follow Council procedures including delayed processing, adherence to timescales, agreed workflows and 

stages. 
 

 Unacceptable behaviour by staff including rudeness, violence and aggression. 

 Poor communication from the department to service user including: 
o Failure to respond in appropriate timescales to messages and correspondence – this could be specific identification of 

an individual member of staff or of the team / service in general. 
o Staff failure to update Customer with regard to changes to meetings, appointments etc. 

 

 The Council failing to do something which it has been asked to do. 

 The Council failing to do something which the Customer thinks it should have done, even if it was not actually asked to do it: 
o Failure to implement actions agreed in meetings. 
o Failure to implement actions following a previous complaint. 
o Failure to carry out an agreed / requested assessment. 

 
6. PROMOTING INDEPENDENCE AND SOCIAL INCLUSION 
 Discrimination; not being listened to. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 13



What does the data tell us? 

Zero complaints were responded to outside the acknowledgement statutory timescale of two days in 2018/19. 

 
Table 1 - 2018/19 Data 

Service Area Stage 1 Stage 2 Total 

Adult Services 44 1 45 

Children’s 

Services  

52 1 53 

Total 96 2 98 

 
 

The above table does not reflect the number of concerns received within the complaints department however if the matter is identified as 

case management and not a complaint we do not record these on our system but pass the concerns to the appropriate line manager. 

 

Stage One 

In 2018/2019 there were 96 recorded complaints made during the year compared with 75 in the previous year.   

There was an increase in stage one complaints in Adult Services (44 in 2018/19 compared to 33 in 2017/2018).   

There was an increase in stage one complaints in Children’s Services (52 in 2018/19 compared to 42 in 2017/2018). 

 

The new Complaints Regulations and Guidance sets an expectation that complainants will be offered a face to face 

meeting wherever deemed appropriate as a means to resolving their complaint.   

This has continued to be effective in resolving complaints at a local level and has resulted in more positive outcomes for 

complainants and their on-going relationship with the service. 
 

 

 

 

  

P
age 14



The stage one ‘start date’ is governed by (a) the date of acknowledgement, (b) the date on which an advocate is appointed or (c) where a 

complaint is made by ‘other persons’, the date on which the Council decides that the person has sufficient interest to warrant consideration. 

 

Over the past year the Complaints Team has focused in supporting service areas by answering concerns and complaints at 
the first point of contact with parents/guardians.   

 

This has successfully reduced the number of complaints that have progressed to stage one of the complaints process.   

 
 

Stage Two 

The formal complaints received are more complex in nature and often contain several components of dissatisfaction to be independently 

investigated.  During this reporting period, we received 1 complaint for Adult Services and 1 complaint for Children’s Services that have been 

dealt with at stage two.  There has been a significant reduction in stage two complaints, this is due in large part to the complaints 

department being more pro-active in the management of the complaints process  through setting up meetings with the Line 

Manager and complainant within the stage one process. 

 

2018/2019 there were 2 stage two complaints during the year, compared with 3 in the previous year.   

The number of stage two complaints for Adult Services remained at 1.   

There was a decrease in stage two complaints for Children’s Services with 1 compared to 2 in the previous year.   

Of the 52 complaints received in Children’s Services, only 1 progressed to Stage two complaints.   

 

As stated in our Complaints Policy, a complaint will not escalate to formal investigation until both the Council and the complainant agree on 

what is to be investigated.   
 

All stage two complaints within the Social Services Complaints process are investigated by an Independent Investigator and in addition an 

Independent Person for Children Services complaints. 
 

P
age 15



 

Continuous Improvement 

It was identified in the Scrutiny meeting of the 12th March 2019 there was a requirement for more detailed information i.e.  nature 

of complaints and service areas.  Unfortunately, this was too late for the information for 2018-2019, but due to a new form of collating the 

complaints data this information will be available for the 2019-2020 report.  Below is a list of the most common issues raised by complainants. 

 

Table 2 Summary of what Complaints were about 

 

Nature of Complaint 

Change in call times / Missed Calls (Homecare) Failure to provide a service 

Failure to comply with policies Financial issues 

Lack of information/communication Medication issues 

Issues around adaptations Staff issues 

Waiting for assessment/Request for assessment Quality of care 

Quality of service Transport (Learning Disability) 

Information Governance Missed Calls 

 

Although we are unable to provide a full breakdown of the service areas that have received the highest number of complaints in Children’s 

Services for 2018-2019, we have been able to identify the three service areas where most of the complaints are directed towards, these are: 

 Intake team 

 Children Looked After Team 

 Family Support Team 
 
 
 
 

P
age 16



The Complaints Team are currently in discussion with Children’s Services to consider the option of teams having their own email address as 

this would offer an alternative method of communication for parents with the hope that this would reduce the number of telephone calls to 

the departments. 

 

Complexity 

It should be noted however that the low number of stage two complaints does not reflect the significant time that they demand of the 

complaints department due to the complex and contentious nature of these complaints. 

 

Public Service Ombudsman for Wales 

The Ombudsman now has an appointed person for the Complaints Standards Authority, each quarter the Complaints office provides the 

data to the Ombudsman which they collate and present in an All Wales report.   

 

Habitual / Vexatious Complaints 

During 2018/2019, one individual was subject to restrictions under this policy as a result of their behaviour and persistence in pursuing a 

complaint where the Council’s complaint procedure has been fully and properly implemented and exhausted.  We have also limited contact for 

individuals regarding the Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Councils Complaints email address in order to reduce the demands that these 

individuals have placed on certain departments.  Individual’s continued inclusion under the Habitual/Vexatious Complaints Policy is reviewed 

every six months.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 17



Complaint Outcomes 
The emphasis of the complaints process is focused on achieving a satisfactory resolution of matters rather than upholding or not upholding 

complaints.   

 

All complaints are unique in their own right and often contain several elements of dissatisfaction to be addressed.  This is particularly relevant 

at the formal stage, hence the reason why the majority of stage two complaints are part upheld – some components being agreed while others 

not supported. 

 

Table 3 Adult Services Complaints Outcomes 2018/19 

Stage 1 

Upheld Partial Not upheld Inconclusive 

/ withdrawn 

6 12 25 1 

Total 

44 

 

Stage 2 

Upheld Partial Not upheld Inconclusive 

0 0 1 0 

Total 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 18



 

Table 4 Children’s Services Complaints Outcomes 2018/19 

Stage 1 

Upheld Partial Not upheld Inconclusive 

/ withdrawn 

7 12 29 4 

Total 

52 

 

Stage2 

Upheld Partial Not upheld Inconclusive 

0 0 1 0 

Total 

1 

 

Compliments 

It is always important to also hear when people are happy with what we have done.  

A total of 25 compliments and positive comments were formally recorded during 2018/2019.   

 

This is an increase of 11 on the previous year.   

The Complaints Officer held a meeting with Children’s Services staff to advise them of the Complaints process and also encourage 

staff to cascade compliments received on to the Complaints Department. 

 

Compliments received are an equal reflection of individual and team efforts therefore it is imperative that staff and managers pass all 

compliments received to the complaints department in order that they can be recorded. 

 

P
age 19



It is has been encouraging to note there has been an increase in compliments received as they provide valuable information regarding the 

quality of services and identifies where they are working well they also give a balanced reflection of members of the public’s 

perception of our services and staff. 

 

Examples of compliments received during 2018/2019: 

 

Social Services Compliments 2018-2019 

I wish to convey my sincere gratitude to XX and XX at MTCBC, I cannot thank you enough please convey this to all involved. 

 

A confident and skilful worker who will prove to be a real asset for this Local Authority in the years to come….It is difficult when 

considering the evidence in this case not to be reminded of the case of Baby Peter.  Thankfully the agencies intervened to rescue XX and 

the case recording is a poignant reminder of the value of effective safeguarding services in our society. 

 

Thank you for all your help over the years. 

 

I just want to thank you for all your help with XX.  I am so grateful and I thank you and your team so much you go beyond and above your 

job and when I could not have been there for XX you have.  I hope you and your family have a blessed Christmas. 

 

Just wanted to thank everyone for the fantastic commitment and support shown and was impressed by the departments staff including 

the admin support. 

 

I am writing in connection with the services provided to me.  In particular I would like to highlight the work of XX as they have been the 

person whom I have had the most contact.  He is consummate professional who has always been concerned to ensure I was fully 

appraised of the complex regulations associated with the case.  He has pointed me in the right direction, doing a difficult job with tact, 

good humour, attention to detail and an obvious empathy for his clients.  Your team are a shining example of all that is best  in the local 

authority service.  I would never have coped without their help. 

 

 

P
age 20



Social Services Compliments 2018-2019 

This is just a little something to show you how much we appreciate everything you have done for us.  Thank you so much. 

 

I visited XX yesterday who is mother of a case open to Intake.  XX and her father XX have advised me that they are happy for me to share 

the below as a compliment. 

 

XX advised me that she had a negative experience with Children’s Services as a child.  She has previously been assessed by XX  and wanted 

to say how she had always found XX open and honest.  She commented that this had helped her build a degree of trust in Children’s 

Services.  

 

 

Lessons Learnt 
It is crucial that there is learning from complaints at all stages of the procedure, resulting in improved services and service delivery, wherever 

possible.  Complaints provide useful information in respect of the way that services are delivered. 

 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council Social Services adopts a positive attitude towards complaints, we continue to learn from complaints 

and view complaints as a valuable form of feedback, which assists in the development and improvement of services.  While not all complaints 

are upheld they do, however, provide useful information in respect of the way services are delivered.  They provided us with the opinions of 

our customers and also provide opportunities to learn lessons where a service has fallen short of expected standards. 

 

Some examples of actions arising from outcomes of investigations of complaints are summarised: 

 

 A common theme reported is a lack of information and communication from Social Services including failure to respond within 
appropriate timescales to messages and failure to update customers on decisions, delays in assessments, failure to implement agreed 
actions, and not following through what was promised.  Examples also include staff failure to update customers with regard to changes 
to meetings, appointments etc.   

 When the complaint is highly complex the Local Authority needs to ensure that they respond to ‘scattergun’ complainants with one 
voice which will prevent the local authority being perceived as unable to communicate across departments 

P
age 21



 For managers to support staff members who are subjected to inappropriate; abusive and aggressive behaviour from their clients and 
families.   

 The Complaints Department will deliver a training programme to both Adults and Children’s Social Services in order that as a Local 
Authority we utilise the correct complaints process. 
 

 Since the Local Authority has adopted the Welsh Government guidance on handling Complaints and Representations by Local Authority 
Social Services the Complaints department has within stage 1 of the procedure arranged meetings between the complainants and the 
managers of the relevant departments.  This has significantly reduced the number of complaints escalating to stage 2.  

 

Examples of actions taken on issues raised as a result of a complaint, the Complaints Department have: 

 When the complaint is identified as being complex and includes a number of departments, meetings are held with the Managers of the 
relevant departments in order to formulate one response. 

 The Social Workers have a long history of looking out for others but not necessarily claiming the success.  Managers are now 
recognising praise received which will support and encourage the Social Worker within their role. 

 Social Workers are being involved with the complaint from the onset in order to obtain vital knowledge of why the individual felt the 
need to make a complaint, this has proved to be a far more positive outcome which has improved continual relationships between the 
client and the Social Worker. 

 Complaints Department are currently in discussion with children services to provide general email addresses to provide to members of 
the public in order to reduce the high volume of telephone calls to the departments. 

 The Complaints Department has continued to provide support and advice to managers on complaints handling including writing 
appropriate complaints responses.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 22



Conclusion 
The Social Care Complaints Procedure provides service users and their advocates with an effective way of communicating their concerns so 

that levels of customer satisfaction can be increased and our services continue to improve. 

 

Like all other Councils in Wales we are facing the need to reduce the amount of money we spend. However, despite the increasing challenges 

faced by public services, in general, the number of complaints received is relatively small in comparison to the nature of the services provided. 

Overall, 96 of all complaints were resolved at stage one. 

 

Social Services continue to provide for the needs of the community, achieving the Council’s vision and strategic aims for the  future.  The needs 

of the population are changing and we will continue to learn and develop from complaints.  On average, users of our services recognise the 

support and good practice afforded to them and the number of complaints recorded continues to be a very low percentage of the total 

number of people and children of Merthyr Tydfil who are provided with services.   

 

The pressure on social services continues to increase with the numbers of older people rising and becoming a larger proportion of the overall 

population.  This will inevitably result in an increase in demand for social services.  Likewise, the demand for services continues to increase for 

Children’s Services.   

 

Services have continued to experience high levels of demand, reflecting the levels of disadvantage and the challenges faced by a significant 

number of families living in the County Borough.  The Social Care Complaints Procedure provides citizens with an essential, effective way of 

communicating their concerns so that levels of customer satisfaction can be increased, and our services continue to improve.  With the 

Implementation of the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act in April 2016 the expectations of the people we serve has increased, this will 

also be in the context of continued austerity.  We are therefore likely to continue to see an increase in complaints whilst services develop to 

meet the new level of expectation and austerity measures are absorbed.  

 

 

 

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 

 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Transformation of Day Services Provision  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The model of our day service provision has remained static for a number of years. 

This has resulted in a reduced ability to respond flexibly to our client groups with 
much activity being centre based. 

 
1.2 Consultation with families on suggested changes to service were not positively met. 

Feedback from families identified a desire to keep the status quo. 
 
1.3 Covid -19 has forced the service to change in order to meet government 

requirements and manage capacity to ensure clients are able to access service. This 
has resulted in a reduction in service for the majority of clients. 

 
1.4 We continue to be committed to modernising day services. IN support of this we are 

developing a Day Opportunities strategy. 
 
1.5 The work of the Day Opportunities strategy is in line with the on-going projects/tasks 

that directly contribute to corporate Recovery, Transformation, and Improvement 
Plan. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1  Members are asked to review and note its content and consider future plans to 

support the Social Services recovery across the County Borough and future actions 
in respect of day services for adults. 

 
 

Date Written 28th September 2020 

Report Author Angela Edevane/ Lowri Morgan 

Service Area Adult Social care 

Committee Date 6th October 2020 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4



3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 MTCBC currently provides a range of day services to support people with a learning 

disability or Older People (including those with a dementia). These can be broadly 
divided into our in house provision and externally commissioned services 
(predominantly provided out of county). 

 
3.2 Adult Services committed to review day services in order that we could assess our 

performance. We worked closely on the creation of the Joint Commissioning 
Statement for Learning Disability which worked co-productively to identify priorities 
for people with a learning disability by people with a learning disability. We 
commissioned Dementia Care Matters (now Meaningful Care Matters) to work with 
us to develop our approach to the dementia day service which has resulted in a large 
scale ICF build project in the health park and a programme of culture change with 
the staff.  
 

3.3 Our in-house provision currently consists of the following: 
 

Learning Disability Services: 

 

 Unit 1 – Keir Hardie Health Park; Profound and multiple learning disability 
(PMLD) support alongside a complex behaviour unit. 

 Ty Gwyn Newydd – a mix of support services for complex behaviour learning 
disability clients and those with a moderate learning / physical disability. 

 Cyfarthfa Greenhouses / Outside Projects – day service support for lower end 
learning disability needs including commissioned services within the County 
Borough. 

 
Older People Services: 
 

 Unit 2 Keir Hardie Health Park – EMI dementia day services for older people. 

 Ty Cwm – elderly frail – a mix of older people with physical and mental health 
conditions including earlier stages of dementia. 

 
3.4 We commission some bespoke specialist day services that is delivered out of county 

with National Autistic Society, Partnerships of Care and Vision 21. Predominantly 
this has occurred where we have been unable to meet an individual’s needs or they 
have chosen to access some specialist day service outside of what is offered by the 
Local Authority. 

 
3.5 We also commission with Merthyr Tydfil Institute for the Blind and Merthyr Tydfil 

College to provide other day time opportunities including basic living skills classes 
and work type support in the factory setting.  

 
3.6  For our internal services, prior to the start of the pandemic numbers were as follows: 
  

Unit 1 PMLD: 16-17 per day (Monday – Friday) 

Ty Gwyn Newydd :  13-19 per day (Monday – Friday) 

Greenhouses: 6-9 per day (Monday – Friday) 

Ty Cwm: 16-19 per day (Monday – Friday) 

Unit 2:  5-10 per day (Monday – Friday) 

 Page 26



3.7 The range in numbers are reflective of the needs of the individuals accessing the 
service that day. Unit 2 had frozen new admissions due to the need to relocate to 
allow build work on the health park. Prior to this Unit 2 supported up to 13 individuals 
per day.   

        
3.8 In order to further support our approach to day services we are working to develop a 

Day Opportunities strategy. This strategy will identify the purpose of our programme 
of day opportunities and present us with the opportunity to transform and modernise 
that which is on offer.  

 
 

 

4.0 WHERE WE WERE  
 
4.1 Our current day service configuration has been in place for a significant period of 

time. Much of what is provided is centre based with limited flexibility to meet people’s 
desired personal outcomes. As an example historically individuals would attend day 
services 5 days per week whether they were interested in what was being provided 
during that day or not. This was at times, purely a replication of what was offered to 
individuals in school. 

 
4.2 It is recognised that there is a need for day services to be modernised in line with 

changing priorities and in line with the need to meet the wellbeing outcomes of the 
people who use the service. In order to support this we are undertaking work on how 
the services can be reconfigured and factoring this in to any future plans.  

 
 

5.0 WHERE WE ARE NOW  
 
5.1 We have commenced work in several areas to enhance the day service offer though 

further work is required. 
 

5.2 Thanks to a successful Integrated Care Fund (ICF) bid and in line with the previous 
priorities from the Valley Life Programme we have already progressed in the area for 
Older People’s day services undertaking the following: 

 

 Utilised ICF funding to commission Meaningful Care Matters to review the model 
of care and physical environment within day service and develop an improvement 
plan 

 Commissioned a culture change project with MCM to further develop the service 
running in tandem with an ICF funded capital build on the environment of the 
dementia unit to make the facility dementia friendly and butterfly accredited 

 
5.3 We have considered how we can deliver day services differently and agreed we 

needed to develop a Day Opportunities strategy to ensure that what we provide 
locally is able to meet individual personal goals and that we move away from fitting a 
person into a service towards a more tailored person centred approach. 
Unfortunately due to Covid-19 we have not been able to engage and co-produce as 
we would have liked. In order not to delay the process we will seek to draft the 
strategy and actively engage with clients utilising our existing partnerships including 
People First and Age Connects Morgannwg. 

 
Page 27



5.4 A public consultation on potential efficiencies in 2019 with families has been 
completed which demonstrated a desire for the status quo to remain. Feedback 
included: 

 ‘She needs routine. She went five days a week to school she needs to go five 
days a week to day service’  

 “It will cost the Council more as people will need to go into care because the 
carer will not be able to cope” 

 “We are already broken and this will break us more” 

 “The break when they are at day services keeps me sane” 

 “This is the only time I have for me to do things like shopping and hospital 
appointments 
 

The full outcome of the consultation has not been reported to Council or Scrutiny as 
the submission has been delayed due to the pandemic. 

 
5.5 Whilst we had commenced several areas of re-design many of the plans that we had 

for the development of day service were put on hold due to the global Covid -19 
pandemic.  

 
5.6 During the early days of the virus in March 2020 we made a decision, to temporarily 

close day services to ensure the safety of the people who use the service. This was 
taken, as government guidance on shielding was such that many if not all of our 
client groups were expected to remain indoors. This, coupled with fear of families 
that their loved ones would catch Covid-19, led to many of our service users making 
a decision not to come into service. It was also not possible with the existing 
numbers in service to facilitate a 2M social distance; our buildings simply did not 
allow this.  

 
5.7 In order to support our clients as much as possible we instigated weekly welfare calls 

so that we could be made aware of those individuals who were struggling and 
implement other support mechanisms or other services to support individuals in the 
interim wherever possible. This included options such as an increase in direct 
payments and sitting services to offer families a break. 

 

5.8 We RAG rated our service users to enable us to identify those most at risk. This was 
a partnership approach between care management and the day services staff who 
were undertaking the welfare calls and was based on the information provided by 
families in respect of how they were managing.  

 

5.9 In June this year we instigated plans for a phased reopening of the service. In order 
to comply with social distancing there has been a need to considerably reduce 
capacity for individuals and utilised the RAG status to prioritise those who could 
attend. We also asked individual families to transport their loved ones in wherever 
possible as we could not operate our transport provision in the same way (due to 
social distancing). The table below illustrates the numbers currently in day service to 
enable social distancing to occur: 
 

 

Unit Pre-Covid numbers 
 

Post Covid numbers 

Unit 1 PMLD:  16-17 per day Mon – 
Friday 

6-7 Mon, Weds, Fri. 
1 per day Tues and Thurs 

Page 28



Ty Gwyn Newydd :  13-19 per day Mon – 
Friday 

4-6 per day Mon – Thurs 
(Fri closed) 

Greenhouses: 6-9 per day Mon – 
Friday 

4-5 per day Mon – Friday 

Ty Cwm: 16-19 per day Mon – 
Friday 

4-6 per day Mon – Friday 
(Thurs closed) 

Unit 2:  5-10 per day Mon – 
Friday 

2-3 per day Mon – Thurs 
(Fri Closed) 

 
 

5.10 Although the changes have taken some adjustment families have been incredibly 
supportive of the approach undertaken. We have not received any complaints in 
relation to the new regime and feedback from families has been positive in relation to 
the support they have received from us.  

 
5.11 Families continue to find the current situation difficult but where we can we have 

endeavoured to provide support flexibly to meet their needs. This has included 
flexing support due to family bereavement, offering short term additional days to 
support respite for families and offering support in the community where it has not 
been possible for people to attend centre. Some families continue to refuse to send 
their loved ones to centre out of fear of the impact of the virus.  

 
5.12 The picture is very different in our commissioned services. Of those services we 

commission, only one has reopened and offers a phased return to clients of two days 
per week. All other commissioned services remain closed at this time. 

 

5.13 As of September 2020 the capital build works for unit 2 in Keir Hardie Health Park 
have commenced. The predicted end date for this work is March 2021. 

 

5.14 The local authority improvement plan has recognised the need to improve day 
services. The development of the Day Opportunities strategy supports has 
commences and will identify steps and key milestones for the service moving 
forward. We will seek to incorporate consultation and active engagement in this 
strategy to ensure a strong citizen voice is reflected in the actions we undertake.  
 

 

6.0 WHERE WE WANT TO BE  
 
6.1 We have committed to modernising our day service / opportunities to strengthen the 

way we meet the wellbeing outcomes of the people who require day time 
opportunities. In order to achieve this the following areas of development have been 
identified: 

 

 Complete the review of day services informing the creation of the Day 
Opportunities Strategy.  

 Fully implement the work of MCM including continuing the work with Health 
Colleagues to ensure the build environment of unit 2 is suitable to meet the needs 
of individuals with a dementia. 

 Explore alternative options for lower level day opportunities / support including 
exploring work opportunities in the community in line with the identified priorities 
of the LD commissioning statement. 

Page 29



 Enhance the provision of daily living skills training for those individuals who are 
able to actively engage enabling individuals to maintain their independence as 
much as possible. 

 Explore opportunities with health colleagues to enhance the build environment of 
unit 1. 
 

 

7.0 WHAT WE NEED TO DO NEXT  
 
7.1 In order to further progress our plans around day opportunities we have committed to 

undertake the following: 
 

 Consult on the Day Opportunities strategy  

 Implement the results of the consultation on the strategy and any other actions 
identified therein 

 Ensure robust interim arrangement for day unit 2 service whilst the build works in 
Keir Hardie Health Park are completed  

 Consider implications of the new ALN requirements on our college provision for 
people with a learning disability. 

 
7.2 We have considered indicative timescales for the completion of these areas however 

we anticipate that there will be continued delays due to the pandemic and needing to 
continue to adhere to relevant guidance. 

 

8.0 CONTRIBUTION TO WELLBEING OBJECTIVES 
 

8.1 This report specifically links to the Living Well objective within the Council’s 
Corporate Wellbeing Plan: People are empowered to live independently within 
their Communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental 
health. In addition to this, the report has also identified focus areas and on-going 

projects/tasks that directly contribute to corporate Recovery, Transformation, and 
Improvement Plan, which is currently being overseen by the Assurance Board  

 

 

LISA CURTIS JONES 
CHIEF OFFICER (SOCIAL SERVICES) 

COUNCILLOR CHRIS DAVIES  
CABINET MEMBER FOR                

SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

 

 

Page 30



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

SCRUTINY REPORT 
 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and 
Gentlemen 

Forward Work Programme 2020/21  
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Committee with its work programme for consideration and to 
prepare in advance of the next scrutiny committee meeting. 

 
1.2 To remind Scrutiny Committee members that they need to consider the requirements 

of the Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 in all aspects of scrutiny 
work. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 

2.1 The Committee considers the attached Forward Work Programme and approves, 
revises or amends it as deemed appropriate; and to consider the questions at 3.7 in 
planning for the next meeting.  

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The attached forward work programme identifies the topics and issues under 
consideration by the Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional 
subjects to be identified and included on the programme. 

 
3.2 Scrutiny committees are required to prepare and keep under review a programme for 

their future work. By reviewing and prioritising issues, members are able to ensure 
that the work programme delivers a member-led agenda.  

 
3.3 The Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 requires each Public Service 

Board (PSB) and Council to work with their communities to develop local objectives. 

Date Written 28th September 2020 

Report Author Scrutiny Section – Sian Lyons-
Nicholas 

Committee Division Scrutiny  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 6th October 2020 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council (MTCBC) and the Cwm Taf PSB have acted 
on this. 

 
3.4 MTCBC has four local Wellbeing Objectives, each having clear outcomes that will 

help the Council to respond to local community needs and contribute to the seven 
national wellbeing goals. The four Wellbeing Objectives are:- 

 
 

BS Best Start to Life - Children and young people get the best start to life and are 
equipped with the skills they need to be successful learners and confident 
individuals.  
 
The key outcomes for Best Start to Life are: 
 

 Children live in a nurturing and stimulating home environment  

 Children have access to high quality pre-school and school education  

 Improve the educational outcomes for all children and young people  

 Children and young people have good health and wellbeing 
 
 

WL Working Life - People feel supported to develop the skills required to meet the 
needs of businesses, with a developing, safe infrastructure which makes Merthyr 
Tydfil as an attractive destination.  
 
The key outcomes for Working Life are:  
 

 Merthyr Tydfil realises its full economic potential, with a skilled workforce and 
better employment opportunities; 

 People value and enjoy the built and natural environment, protecting and 
enhancing our cultural assets for current and future generations;  

 We have strong, resilient and supportive communities where people take 
responsibility for their own actions and how they affect others.  

 
 

EW Environmental Wellbeing - Communities protect, enhance and promote our 
environment and countryside.  
 
 The key outcomes for Environmental Wellbeing are:  
 

 Environmental damage is minimised by preventing pollution 

 To maximise the amount of materials and resources recycled in line with the 
waste hierarchy; 

 Merthyr Tydfil has good quality, biodiverse and connected green infrastructure 
and open spaces; and 

 The use of renewable and low carbon energy is increased.  
 

LW Living Well - People are empowered to live independently within their 
communities, where they are safe and enjoy good physical and mental health.  
 
The key outcomes for Living Well are: 
 

 People live safe and independent lives within their communities 

 Children and adults are safeguarded from harm and feel safe 

 Children and young people live safely with their family or close to home and 
have transitioned well into adulthood. 

Page 32



 

 
3.5 The Scrutiny Committee is encouraged to identify issues that reflect these priorities 

that are within your remit and/or are a priority for local people and communities. If a 
matter is a recurring issue for the people you, as Councillors, represent, the 
likelihood is that it is something that the Committee should consider. The more 
relevant the issue is to local communities then the greater the likelihood of engaging 
those communities in the scrutiny process and of producing outcomes that will be 
visible to those communities you represent. 

 
3.6 MTCBC has developed an ‘Our Shared Vision’ document (Appendix I). This makes 

the connections from the seven national Wellbeing Goals through to the local 
objectives and political priorities. This document is contained within one page and 
acts as an easy to understand guide. When considered with service area strategies 
and operational plans a thread is created that can be extended down to individual 
tasks. This helps staff members see how they are contributing to the Act and the 
‘Wales We Want’, and will assist Scrutiny members better understand the 
connections with the Act. 

 
3.7 The work programme is a dynamic document and is reviewed at every meeting of 

the Committee to ensure that its contents are still relevant and will add value to what 
the Council and partners are doing. At each meeting the committee will agree the 
agenda items for their next meeting and in preparation may in advance wish to ask 
itself the following questions. 
 

Q) Why has the item been placed on a Scrutiny Work Programme? 

a. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s wellbeing 
objectives? 

b. Does this item/ topic contribute to the delivery of the Council’s corporate 
priorities/ objectives? 

c. Is this item/ topic relating to service performance concerns? 
d. Is this item/ topic of significant public interest? 
e. Does the item/ topic have any budgetary implications? 
f. Is this an item/ topic where Scrutiny involvement will make a significant 

difference and achieve tangible outcomes? 
g. Can effective Scrutiny of this issue be delivered from within available 

resources? 
 
Q) What is the specific role of the Committee? 

            This will depend on the item – for example the role could be: 
 

a. to determine if performance levels are acceptable in relation to a particular 
department; 

 b.  to determine if a specific policy is fit for purpose; 
 c.  to satisfy itself that the Authority is working well with its partners in tackling a 

major issue; 
d.  to gather the views of specific stakeholders as part of an on-going scrutiny 

investigation/ review; 
e. to explore possible solutions to an issue. 
 

Page 33



 
 

Q) What outcome is the Committee seeking from the consideration of this 
item? 

a. To comment on the proposed budget and make suggestions to cabinet 
regarding the proposed budget’s ability to deliver the priorities of the council  

b. Identification of any causes for concern and note successes. 
c. To receive an overview presentation. 
d. To gain an understanding of and to comment on a policy/ strategy 
e. To explore ideas around the setting of budgets while considering the 

pressures facing each service. This also helps provide an overview of the 
policy frame work.  

f. For the scrutiny committee to gain an overview and refresh their knowledge of 
the wellbeing objectives/ other plan/ other strategy. 

g. Improvement in service delivery 
 

Q) What information does the Committee need to fulfil this role/ achieve 
this outcome?  

What is the Committee trying to do? You might be trying to do some or all of 
the following i.e. establish facts; gather opinions; or explore new ideas/ 
solutions. 

 

Q) Who should be invited to the meeting to provide the information? 

Depending on the information you need you might want to hear from a range 
of witnesses – e.g. Cabinet members, Senior Officers, Service users, and 
External partners – e.g. Police, Strategic Partners etc 

 

Q) Does the Committee need to ask for written representations? 

The Committee may wish to pose some questions to the Directorate/ Cabinet 
Member/ External Partner etc. prior to the meeting. This may help in instances 
when the Committee is looking for something specific to be addressed. This 
will assist whoever is attending to ensure that they have the information/ 
answer ready for the meeting.  

 

Q) Which meeting format/ venue would be most appropriate for the item 
and for the witnesses that will be invited to attend? 

 Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 global pandemic, all scrutiny committees 
are to be held via Microsoft Teams at least for the time-being. This decision 
has been taken to ensure the safety of our members, officers and all others in 
attendance. Currently, there is no clear indication of when hybrid meetings will 
be appropriate; and this will be reviewed in line with any updates and advice 
from U.K. and Welsh Government. 

 
Even under normal circumstances, meetings do not have to be held in a 
formal committee room environment. You may wish to hold occasional 
meetings in community location settings e.g. community centres, sports 
facilities etc. It depends on the subject. Some people find the formal setting 
intimidating. Site visits for example may be more appropriate to see first-hand 
what the committee is investigating/ obtaining information on e.g. waste sites, 
regeneration projects etc. 
 

Page 34



 
Q) Method of Scrutiny? 

 Once Members have identified the matters they wish to scrutinise, 
consideration should be given to scoping the subject in more detail including 
the timing and method of scrutiny to be used. Support in this process will be 
given by the Scrutiny and Support Manager and Officer. Members may wish 
to: 

a. Consider an item at a single meeting; 

b. Consider an item over a series of meetings; 

c. Allocate the work to a small working group of Members (Task & Finish group) 
to investigate the issue over a period of 2-3 months (this may involve visits to 
see how services are working in practice); 

d. Undertake an Inquiry Day (or days); 

e. Undertake joint scrutiny with members of another Scrutiny Committee; 

f. Invite expert witnesses to give their views; 

g. Seeking the views of service users/ carers and/ or the general public (public 
calls for evidence) 

 
 
 
Performance and Scrutiny Department 
MTCBC 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

Statement of Wellbeing 
& Focus on the Future: 
Wellbeing in our 
Community 

4th April 2018 MTCBC Website 
 
Full Council 4th April 2018  
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 35

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/documents/g2694/Public%20reports%20pack%2004th-Apr-2018%2017.30%20Full%20Council.pdf?T=10&LLL=0


 
 
 
 
 

  

APPENDIX I 

Page 36



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Committee 
Date  

Overarching Item Officer & Cabinet Member  Scrutiny Focus  Cross Cutting 
Strategies and 

Plans 

15th 
September 

2020 

Forward Work 

Programme 

2020/2021 

 

Cllr Bill Smith (Chair) and 

Scrutiny Committee 

Members 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The draft Forward Work Programme is developed at 

the beginning of the municipal year by the Members of the Social Services 

Scrutiny Committee, which includes the areas the members wish to focus on 

throughout the year. However, it is a fluid document and it may change due 

to the needs of the Social Services Scrutiny Committee. Therefore, the 

committee is to consider and approve the Forward Work Programme as it 

stands for Social Services (2020/2021). 

Recovery, 

Transformation & 

Improvement Plan 

(Governance) 

Coronavirus 
Pandemic - 
Update on 
Recovery and 
Activity 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) / 
Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The committee has requested a report to give an 
update on how Social Services are responding to the demands and 
challenges due to the Coronavirus pandemic. This report should also outline 
the services transition to recovery and lessons learned going forward. 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 

6th 
October 

2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Complaints and 
Compliments 
(2018/19)  
 
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer) / Gaynor Lewis 
(Complaints Manager) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Local Authorities are required to the Social Services 
Complaints Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 and the Representations 
Procedure (Wales) Regulations 2014 to produce an Annual Report about the 
operation of their Social Services Complaints, Representations and 
Compliments Policy and Procedures.  
The complaints reports are completed retrospectively after the complaints 
have been resolved; this can take up to 6-8 months after the financial year. 
Therefore, a mid-year report (2017/18) was presented to Scrutiny in 
September 2019. The committee has now requested an end of year report 
(2018/19) for consideration and challenge. The report should include any 
details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. 
The report is also to identify key areas for development and improvement 
for 2019/20. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Day Services 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adults Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. Specific focus to be confirmed. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

P
age 37



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

17th 
November 

2020 

Budget Position 
updates 
 
 
 

Lisa Curtis Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) 
/ Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny providing an 
update on Social Services budget and areas of likely overspend and the 
measures that have been put in place to help reduce any overspend within 
the department.  This report should also give any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 

Transition of 
Young People 
Leaving Care 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) 
/ Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. Specific focus to be confirmed. 

Focus on the 
Future. 
SSWBA. 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan. 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

5th January 
2021 

Adult Services 
Strategies 
(2019/20)  
 
 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Adult Services will provide a position 
statement on strategies applicable to Adult Social Services.  The report is 
also to identify key areas for development and improvement for Q4 
(2020/21) and 2021/22. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Children Services 
Strategies 
(2019/20)  
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - The Head of Children’s Services will provide a 
position statement on strategies applicable to Children’s Social Services.  The 
report is also to identify key areas for development and improvement for Q4 
(2020/21) and 2021/22. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

2nd 
February 

2021 

Safeguarding 
Board Annual 
Report (and 
current update) 

Nicholas Kingham (RCT) / 
Jon Eyre (Safeguarding 
Manager) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Safeguarding is a clear priority for the Council. As a 
Local Authority we have a duty to safeguard children and adults at risk as set 
out by the Social Services and Well-Being Act (SSWBA). Therefore, the 
committee has requested a summary of the 2019/20 Safeguarding Board 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

P
age 38



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 Annual Regional Plan, which is to also identify the key areas of improvement 
going forward both regionally and in Merthyr Tydfil. 
The cover report should include any trend/current data specific Merthyr 
Tydfil and details of issues/barriers experienced and how these have been 
overcome. The report is also to identify key areas for development and 
improvement for 2020/21. 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan - Adult 
Advocacy 
 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 
2014 defines advocacy services as: “services which provide assistance (by 
way of representation or otherwise) to persons for purposes relating to their 
care and support”. The act refers to services being provided by independent 
professional advocates in relation to adults’ and children’s care and support. 
Adult Advocacy has been identified as an area for improvement in the Social 
Services Recovery, Transformation, and Improvement Plan, therefore, the 
members request an update report to be presented on the development of 
advocacy services for adults. The report should also provide any details of 
issues / barriers experienced and how these have been overcome and 
priorities going forward, and any analysis of the engagement undertaken 
and a draft of the co-produced strategy (if possible). 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
 
Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

16th March 
2021 

Social Services 
Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement 
Plan Update 
 
 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) 
/ Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: The social care provision has been under strain 
throughout the pandemic and there are likely to be additional pressures 
from new caseloads being reported following a release from lockdown and 
over the winter months placing further challenges on the resilience of the 
services.  Therefore, the members have requested the Chief Officer of Social 
Services to provide a position statement on the Social Services Recovery, 
Transformation, and Improvement Plan along with any details of 
issues/barriers experienced and how these have been overcome. The report 
is also to identify the key areas for development and improvement for 
2021/22. 

Recovery, 
Transformation & 
Improvement Plan 
 
Focus on the 
Future 

Adults and Young 
Careers 
 
 
 

Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - A report is to be presented to Scrutiny with on the 
Carers Strategy and the impact it is having on the Adults and Young Carers.  
Details should also be provided on any issues/barriers experienced and how 
these have been overcome or how you plan to overcome them. The report is 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

P
age 39



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

also to consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 
within Merthyr Tydfil. 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

7th April 
2021 

Edge of Care 
(Strategy Update) 
 
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) / 
Councillor Chris Davies 
(Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. 

Focus on the 
Future  
 
SSWBA 

Community 
Occupational 
Therapy (COT) 
and Disabled 
Facilities Grant 
(DFG) 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services / 
RCT 

Scrutiny & Challenge: - Summary report providing a position statement on 
the performance within 20/21, along with any details of issues/barriers 
experienced and how these have been overcome. The report is also to 
consider key areas for development and improvement for 2020/21 within 
Merthyr Tydfil. Specific focus to be confirmed. 

Focus on the 
Future 
 
SSWBA 

Forward Work 
Programme 

Chair and Committee 
Members 

Scrutiny and Challenge: - To review the items due to be presented at the 
next Committee meeting, ensuring a clear brief of the Committee’s 
expectations are available to report authors who will be drafting the report. 

 

P
age 40



Social Services Scrutiny Committee  
Work Programme Descriptors 2020/2021 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the Audit Wales (AW) scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that  the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area 

and the outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

Additional Topics for Consideration  

2020/21 Self-Evaluation 
(3 questions) 
Dates of completion of 
2020/21 SER questions 
are yet to be confirmed. 
 

Lisa Curtis-Jones (Chief 
Officer of Social Services) / 
Angela Edevane (Head of 
Adult Services) / Taryn 
Hudd (Head of Children’s 
Services) / Councillor Chris 
Davies (Portfolio Member) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Made up of 3 key questions the re-focused self-
evaluation process supports Chief Officers and service teams to reflect on 
what they achieved and identify and set priorities for improvement.  The 
Committee will receive the service’s response to the first of the key 
questions which is linked to Outcomes.  They will be required to scrutinise 
the proforma outlining the findings of the process (along with relevant 
supporting evidence); and review the validity of the judgment ascribed.   

Focus on the Future 

Reconfiguration of 
Peripatetic Social 
Workers Posts to 
Peripatetic Support 
Workers - Children's 
Service. 
 

Taryn Hudd (Head of 
Children’s Services) 

Scrutiny and Challenge: TBC Focus on the Future 

 

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Annual Report - Social Services Complaints, Representations and Compliments 2018/2019
	4 Transformation of Day Services Provision
	5 Forward Work Programme 2020/21
	Appendix 1


